

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “1934 Act”). As set forth in detail below, Defendants violated Section 10(b) of the 1934 Act by failing to disclose pertinent information relevant to the Company, or, alternatively providing information about the Company which was materially misleading or deceptive.

2. AAP is a retailer specializing in automobile parts and accessories, serving both automobile professionals and non-professional consumers. The Company operates stores called “Advanced Auto Parts,” “Autopart International,” “Carquest,” and “Worldpac.” AAP operates over 4,700 stores (across all four brands) in the United States and Canada.

3. At the beginning of the Class Period, on November 16, 2022, the Company held its quarterly earnings call for investors. During the earnings call, President and CEO Thomas R. Greco (“Greco”) announced “strategic pricing initiatives” aimed to help propel margins growth into 2023. Specifically, Greco stated “we’ve tested and will make surgical pricing actions in certain categories to enable us to better address changes in competitive pricing dynamics.”

4. The Company initiated these “strategic pricing initiatives” despite Greco’s recognition that “our research has consistently indicated that price is not the most important driver for choice for professional customers.” He later stated, “availability is the #1 driver of choice for the professional installers, and as we said many times, price is much lower down the list.”

5. On February 28, 2023, the Company held its quarterly earnings call for the 2022 fourth quarter. During that call, Greco stated, “[w]e continue to execute the disciplined inventory and pricing actions we discussed this quarter. These actions contributed to stronger results, and we expect to improve parts availability throughout 2023, which we believe is the single most important driver to accelerate line growth.” Greco also dismissed the impact of the U.S. economy and other macroeconomic factors on sales and margins. He stated, “we remain cautious

surrounding the macroeconomic backdrop, including the potential for ongoing pressure on low-to-middle income consumers. However, our 2023 guidance is underpinned by continued industry strength with the drivers of demand remaining positive.” The Company then issued its 2023 guidance, projecting net sales of \$11.4 billion to \$11.6 billion and an operating income margin of 7.8% to 8.2%. The Company also remained “committed to paying quarterly cash dividends,” according to Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Jeffrey W. Shepherd (“Shepherd”).

6. On May 31, 2023, AAP held its quarterly earnings call for 2023 first quarter. During that call, Greco conceded, “our financial results in the first quarter were well below expectations.” Because the Company slashed prices on products, Greco stated “we had less price realization than plans, which put substantially higher pressure on our product margin price.” Shepherd revealed during the May call that the Company’s strategic pricing program resulted in the Company being “unable to price to cover product costs in the quarter.” The Company consequently revised downward its 2023 guidance to an operating margin of 5% to 5.3% from the previously announced 7.8% to 9.2% margins.

7. Investors reacted negatively to these revelations and the reduced 2023 guidance. On May 30, 2023, AAP shares closed at \$112.20. The following day, on May 31, 2023, AAP shares closed at \$72.89 on unusually high volume. This \$39.31 difference reflects a 35% one-day drop.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8. Jurisdiction is conferred by Section 27 of the 1934 Act, 15 U.S.C. §78aa. The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the 1934 Act, 15 U.S.C. §§78j(b) and 78t(a), and SEC Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5.

9. AAP's headquarters is 4200 Six Forks Road, Raleigh, North Carolina.

10. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to Section 27 of the 1934 Act. The violations of law complained of herein occurred in part in this District, including the dissemination of materially false and misleading statements complained of herein into this District.

11. In connection with the acts alleged in this Complaint, Defendants, directly or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including, but not limited to, the mails, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of the national securities markets.

PARTIES

12. Plaintiff Miguel Suarez purchased AAP securities as described in the Certification filed herewith. Plaintiff suffered damages in connection with his purchase of AAP stock. Plaintiff's Certification is incorporated herein by reference.

13. Defendant AAP is incorporated in Delaware and with its principal executive offices at 4200 Six Forks Road, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609. During the Class Period, the Company's stock traded on the NYSE stock market under the symbol "AAP."

14. Defendant Greco was at all relevant times President and CEO of AAP. He retired from that position in mid-2023.

15. Defendant Shepherd is and at all relevant times was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

16. Defendants Greco and Shepherd (collectively, the "Individual Defendants"), because of their positions with the Company, possessed the power and authority to control the contents of AAP's quarterly reports, press releases, and presentations to securities analysts, money and portfolio managers, and investors, i.e., the market. They were provided with copies of the

Company's reports and press releases alleged herein to be misleading prior to or shortly after their issuance and had the ability and opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be corrected. Because of their positions with the Company and their access to material information available to them but not to the public, the Individual Defendants knew that the adverse facts specified herein had not been disclosed to and were being concealed from the public and that the positive representations being made were then materially false and misleading. The Individual Defendants are liable for the false statements pleaded herein.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

17. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on behalf of all persons who purchased or otherwise acquired AAP stock during the Class Period (the "Class"). Excluded from the Class are Defendants and their families; the officers and directors of the Company, at all relevant times; members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors, or assigns; and any entity in which Defendants have or had a controlling interest.

18. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable. The disposition of their claims in a class action will provide substantial benefits to the parties and the Court. AAP trades on the NYSE and has more than 59 million shares outstanding, owned by hundreds, if not thousands, of persons.

19. There is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact involved in this case. Questions of law and fact common to members of the Class which predominate over questions that may affect individual Class members include:

- (a) whether Defendants violated the 1934 Act;
- (b) whether Defendants omitted and/or misrepresented material facts;

- (c) whether Defendants' statements omitted material facts necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;
- (d) whether Defendants knew or recklessly disregarded that their statements were false and misleading;
- (e) whether the price of AAP stock was artificially inflated; and
- (f) the extent of damages sustained by Class members and the appropriate measure of damages.

20. Plaintiff's claims are typical of those of the Class because Plaintiff and the other Class members sustained damages from Defendants' wrongful conduct.

21. Plaintiff will adequately protect the interests of the Class and has retained counsel who are experienced in class action securities litigation. Plaintiff has no interests which conflict with those of the Class.

22. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy.

FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS AND OMISSIONS

23. On November 16, 2022, Defendants discussed AAP's strategic price initiative during the Company's earnings conference call for the third quarter of 2022.

24. During third quarter conference call, Greco stated, "while our research has consistently indicated that price is not the most important driver of choice for professional customers, we've tested and will make surgical pricing actions in certain categories to enable us to better address changes in competitive pricing dynamics."

25. Regarding the surgical pricing program, Greco explained: “I think what is new is we successfully tested some surgical pricing actions in some of the more challenged categories, and we’re going to essentially continue to do that and expand more broadly. Our goal overall is to price to cover cost increases. However, we’re going to make some investments in key categories where we expect to drive incremental top line growth.” Although Greco indicated the “goal overall is to price to cover cost increases,” Greco concealed how reducing the price of goods would serve to cover those cost increases.

26. Greco further stated “[i]n terms of operating income margin rate, we’ve delivered significant margin expansion since the start of 2021. We’re also executing strategic initiatives to enable further margin expansion.” Greco also concluded that “based on our updated guidance, we’ll deliver the second consecutive year of net sales growth and adjusted operating margin expansion.”

27. On February 28, 2023, Defendants discussed AAP’s strategic pricing program and its performance during the Company’s earnings conference call for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022.

28. During the earnings conference call, Greco indicated the strategic pricing plan and “the decisions we took in the latter half of the year led to improved performance in Q4, and we expect that to continue into 2023.” Greco also presented an optimistic picture of the surgical pricing plan. There, he said “we talked about surgical price investments to close the competitive gap, and we’ve made a lot of progress there. ... [T]he actions we’re taking are enabling us to drive more top line sales in Pro[fessional] and still show margin expansion.” The Company then issued revised 2023 guidance for \$11.4 billion to \$11.6 billion in sales and operating income margin between 7.8% and 8.2%.

29. At the same time, Greco dismissed the impact of the U.S. economy and other macroeconomic factors on sales and margins. He stated, “we remain cautious surrounding the macroeconomic backdrop, including the potential for ongoing pressure on low-to-middle income consumers. However, our 2023 guidance is underpinned by continued industry strength with the drivers of demand remaining positive.” Shepherd also downplayed the macroeconomic environment, namely inflation. He stated the revised 2023 guidance was “underpinned by a cautious macroeconomic outlook given the pressure on low and middle-income consumers, balanced with the continued industry strength as the primary driver’s demand.” Shepard further stated, “[i]n terms of inflation, particularly product inflation, we do think it’s going to be more a first half versus a second half [issue].”

30. Defendants’ statements in the foregoing paragraphs were false and/or materially misleading because they: 1) misrepresented the efficacy of AAP’s strategic pricing initiative and the impact of price reductions; 2) omitted and/or concealed the negative impacts of the pricing initiative; 3) provided investors with an overly optimistic perception of AAP’s operations; and 4) created the false impression that inflation and macroeconomic factors had an insubstantial impact on the Company’s margins.

LOSS CAUSATION AND ECONOMIC LOSS

31. Before markets opened on May 31, 2023, the Company issued a press release, filed its quarterly report on Form 8-K and hosted an earnings conference call. During the conference call, the Company disclosed its financial results for the first quarter of fiscal 2023.

32. In pertinent part, Greco stated during the earnings conference call that, “our financial results in the first quarter were well below expectations.” Greco attributed the negative quarterly results, in part, to the strategic pricing program. He said: “In terms of competitive pricing,

we've talked in the past based on our research, the most important criteria for an installer to make choices about their parts supplier starts with availability, followed by consistency of delivery and relationship. Pricing has historically been the third or fourth criteria for an installer. ... In order to sustain our targeted competitive price position in Q1, we had less price realization than plans, which put substantially higher pressure on our product margin rate."

33. Shepherd elaborated, stating further that "[i]n terms of gross margin, we experienced headwinds associated with targeted price investments, which were above expectations due to the current competitive landscape. It's important to point out that as we remain committed to maintaining the competitive price targets we've established and have now attained in key categories, we were unable to price to cover product costs in the quarter."

34. During the question-and-answer portion of the call, Morgan Stanley's Simeon Ari Gutman engaged in the following exchange:

<Gutman>: And can you give any sense for how much of the gross margin impact is due to the acceleration of moving some lines of your network versus price investments?

<Shepherd>: It's primarily the price investment. I mean that has been the single biggest driver. We aren't able to cover inflation with price, and that was by far the biggest driver.

35. During the call, Shepherd revealed that AAP was reducing its cash dividend to \$0.25/share down from \$1.50/share. Operating margin was further reduced to 5.0% to 5.3%.

36. Analysts expressed dismay over the May 2023 earnings call. For instance, Scot Ciccarelli of Truist wrote, "[w]hile our concerns over the reversal in their prior pricing strategy caused us to downgrade the stock following their 3Q22 report, this unravel has been faster and more violent than we had anticipated." Ciccarelli further observed, "it is very difficult to reverse one of your biggest drivers (raising or optimizing prices) to improve your competitive pricing but

continue to drive margin expansion.” Similarly, Michael Baker of Davidson wrote the pricing “strategy does not seem to be working as this industry is not typically driven by price, but rather parts availability and service.”

37. These revelations proved influential to investors as AAP shares lost \$39.31 in one day, reflecting a 35% one day drop from close on May 30, 2023 to close on May 31, 2023.

38. During the Class Period, as detailed herein, Defendants engaged in a scheme to deceive the market and a course of conduct that artificially inflated the price of AAP securities and operated as a fraud or deceit on Class Period purchasers of AAP securities by failing to disclose and misrepresenting the adverse facts detailed herein. When Defendants’ prior misrepresentations and fraudulent conduct were disclosed and became apparent to the market on May 31, 2023, the price of AAP stock fell precipitously. As a result of their purchases of AAP securities during the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other Class members suffered economic loss, *i.e.*, damages, under the federal securities laws when the truth about AAP was revealed through the disclosures specified herein, which removed the artificial inflation from the price of AAP stock.

39. By failing to disclose to investors the adverse facts detailed herein, Defendants presented a misleading picture of AAP’s business and prospects. Defendants’ false and misleading statements had the intended effect and caused AAP stock to trade at artificially inflated levels throughout the Class Period.

40. As a direct result of the disclosure identified herein, the price of AAP stock fell precipitously, causing real economic loss to investors who had purchased AAP stock at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period.

41. The price decline on May 31, 2023 was a direct result of the nature and extent of Defendants’ fraud being revealed to investors and the market through the May 2023 earnings call.

The timing and magnitude of the price declines in AAP stock negate any inference that the losses suffered by Plaintiff and the other Class members were caused by changed market conditions, macroeconomic or industry factors, or Company-specific facts unrelated to Defendants' fraudulent conduct. The economic loss, *i.e.*, damages, suffered by Plaintiff and the other Class members was a direct result of Defendants' fraudulent scheme to artificially inflate the price of AAP stock and the subsequent significant decline in the value of AAP stock when Defendants' prior misrepresentations and other fraudulent conduct were revealed.

PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE

42. At all relevant times, the market for AAP securities was an efficient market for the following reasons, among others:

- (a) AAP stock met the requirements for listing and was listed and actively traded on the NYSE, a highly efficient and automated market;
- (b) as a regulated issuer, AAP filed periodic public reports with the SEC;
- (c) AAP regularly communicated with public investors via established market communication mechanisms, including regular disseminations of press releases on the national circuits of major newswire services and other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as communications with the financial press and other similar reporting services; and
- (d) AAP was followed by securities analysts employed by major brokerage firms who wrote reports which were distributed to the sales force and certain customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of these reports was publicly available and entered the public marketplace.

43. As a result of the foregoing, the market for AAP stock promptly digested current information regarding AAP from all publicly available sources and reflected such information in the price of the stock. Under these circumstances, all purchasers of AAP stock during the Class Period suffered similar injury through their purchase of AAP stock at artificially inflated prices and a presumption of reliance applies under the fraud-on-the-market doctrine.

44. A Class-wide presumption of reliance is also appropriate in this action under the United States Supreme Court's holding in *Affiliated Ute Citizens v. United States*, 406 U.S. 128 (1972), because the Class' claims are grounded on Defendants' material omissions. Because this action involves Defendants' failure to disclose material adverse information regarding the Company's business operations and financial prospects – information that Defendants were obligated to disclose – positive proof of reliance is not a prerequisite to recovery. All that is necessary is that the facts withheld be material in the sense that a reasonable investor might have considered them important in making investment decisions. Given the importance of Defendants' material Class Period omissions regarding, among other things, that the strategic pricing initiative was likely to fail due to the industry's imperviousness to price, that requirement is satisfied here.

NO SAFE HARBOR

45. The "Safe Harbor" warnings accompanying AAP's reportedly forward-looking statements ("FLS") issued during the Class Period were ineffective to shield those statements from liability. To the extent that projected revenues and earnings were included in the Company's financial reports prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, including those filed with the SEC on Form 8-K, they are excluded from the protection of the statutory Safe Harbor.

46. Defendants are also liable for any false and misleading FLS pleaded because, at the time each FLS was made, the speaker knew the FLS was false or misleading and the FLS was authorized and/or approved by an executive officer of AAP who knew that the FLS was false. In addition, the FLS were contradicted by existing, undisclosed material facts that were required to be disclosed so that the FLS would not be misleading. Finally, most of the purported Safe Harbor warnings were themselves misleading because they warned of “risks” that had already materialized or failed to provide meaningful disclosures of the relevant risks.

COUNT I

Against All Defendants for Violations of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(a) Promulgated Thereunder

47. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and realleges each and every allegation above as though fully set forth herein.

48. During the Class Period, Defendants disseminated or approved the false statements specified above, which they knew or deliberately disregarded were misleading in that they contained misrepresentations and failed to disclose material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

49. Defendants violated Section 10(b) of the 1934 Act and Rule 10b-5 in that they:
- (a) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud;
 - (b) made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or
 - (c) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business that operated as a fraud or deceit upon Plaintiff and other Class members in connection with their purchases of AAP stock during the Class Period.

50. In addition to the duties of full disclosure imposed on Defendants as a result of their affirmative false and misleading statements to the public, Defendants had a duty to promptly disseminate truthful information with respect to AAP's operations and performance that would be material to investors in compliance with the integrated disclosure provisions of the SEC, including with respect to the Company's revenue and earnings trends, so that the market price of the Company's stock would be based on truthful, complete, and accurate information. SEC Regulations S-X (17 C.F.R. §210.01, *et seq.*) and S-K (17 C.F.R. §229.10, *et seq.*).

51. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and the other Class members have suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases and sales of AAP securities during the Class Period, because, in reliance on the integrity of the market, they paid artificially inflated prices for AAP securities and experienced losses when the artificial inflation was released from AAP securities as a result of the revelations and stock price decline detailed herein. Plaintiff and the other Class members would not have purchased AAP securities at the prices they paid, or at all, if they had been aware that the market prices had been artificially and falsely inflated by Defendants' misleading statements.

52. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants violated Section 10(b) of the 1934 Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

COUNT II

Against the Individual Defendants for Violations Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act

53. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and realleges each and every allegation above as though fully set forth herein.

54. During the Class Period, the Individual Defendants participated in the operation and management of the Company, and conducted and participated, directly and indirectly, in the

conduct of the Company's business affairs. Because of their senior positions, they knew the adverse non-public information about AAP's misstatements.

55. As officers and/or directors of a publicly owned company, the Individual Defendants had a duty to disseminate accurate and truthful information, and to correct promptly any public statements issued by AAP which had become materially false or misleading.

56. Because of their positions of control and authority as senior officers, the Individual Defendants were able to, and did, control the contents of the various reports, press releases and public filings which AAP disseminated in the marketplace during the Class Period concerning the misrepresentations. Throughout the Class Period, the Individual Defendants exercised their power and authority to cause AAP to engage in the wrongful acts complained of herein. The Individual Defendants therefore, were "controlling persons" of the Company within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. In this capacity, they participated in the unlawful conduct alleged which artificially inflated the market price of AAP's common stock.

57. Each of the Individual Defendants, therefore, acted as a controlling person of the Company. By reason of their senior management positions and/or being directors of the Company, each of the Individual Defendants had the power to direct the actions of, and exercised the same to cause, AAP to engage in the unlawful acts and conduct complained of herein. Each of the Individual Defendants exercised control over the general operations of the Company and possessed the power to control the specific activities which comprise the primary violations about which Plaintiff and the other members of the Class complain.

58. By reason of the above conduct, the Individual Defendants are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act for the violations committed by the Company.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment as follows:

- A. Declaring that this action is a proper class action, designating Plaintiff as Lead Plaintiff, and certifying Plaintiff as a Class representatives under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Plaintiff's counsel as Lead Counsel;
- B. Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class members against all Defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of Defendants' wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; and
- C. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in this action, including counsel fees and expert fees.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury.

DATED: October 9, 2023

ROBERTS AND HARRIS, P.C.

/s/ S. Ranchor Harris, III .

S. Ranchor Harris, III
1784 Heritage Center Drive, Suite 204-E
Wake Forest, N.C. 27587
Tel.: (919) 249-5006
Ranchor@robertsandharrispc.com
State Bar No. N.C. 21022

Liaison Counsel for Miguel Suarez

Adam M. Apton (*pro hac vice to be submitted*)
Levi & Korsinsky LLP
33 Whitehall Street, 17th Floor
New York, N.Y. 10006
Tel.: (212) 363-7500
Fax: (212) 363-7171

Counsel for Plaintiff Miguel Suarez

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

MIGUEL SUAREZ

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff _____

(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)

S. Ranchor Harris, III, 1784 Heritage Center Drive, Wake Forest, NC 27839

DEFENDANTS

ADVANCED AUTO PARTS, INC., THOMAS R. GRECO, and JEFFREY W. SHEPHERD

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant Wake County, NC

(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

Attorneys (If Known)

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an "X" in One Box Only)

- 1 U.S. Government Plaintiff
- 2 U.S. Government Defendant
- 3 Federal Question (U.S. Government Not a Party)
- 4 Diversity (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III)

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintiff and One Box for Defendant)

| | PTF | DEF | | PTF | DEF |
|---|----------------------------|----------------------------|---|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| Citizen of This State | <input type="checkbox"/> 1 | <input type="checkbox"/> 1 | Incorporated or Principal Place of Business In This State | <input type="checkbox"/> 4 | <input type="checkbox"/> 4 |
| Citizen of Another State | <input type="checkbox"/> 2 | <input type="checkbox"/> 2 | Incorporated and Principal Place of Business In Another State | <input type="checkbox"/> 5 | <input type="checkbox"/> 5 |
| Citizen or Subject of a Foreign Country | <input type="checkbox"/> 3 | <input type="checkbox"/> 3 | Foreign Nation | <input type="checkbox"/> 6 | <input type="checkbox"/> 6 |

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an "X" in One Box Only)

Click here for: [Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.](#)

| CONTRACT | TORTS | FORFEITURE/PENALTY | BANKRUPTCY | OTHER STATUTES |
|--|---|--|--|---|
| <input type="checkbox"/> 110 Insurance | PERSONAL INJURY | <input type="checkbox"/> 625 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 | <input type="checkbox"/> 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 | <input type="checkbox"/> 375 False Claims Act |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 120 Marine | <input type="checkbox"/> 310 Airplane | <input type="checkbox"/> 690 Other | <input type="checkbox"/> 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157 | <input type="checkbox"/> 376 Qui Tam (31 USC 3729(a)) |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 130 Miller Act | <input type="checkbox"/> 315 Airplane Product Liability | | INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS | <input type="checkbox"/> 400 State Reapportionment |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 140 Negotiable Instrument | <input type="checkbox"/> 320 Assault, Libel & Slander | | <input type="checkbox"/> 820 Copyrights | <input type="checkbox"/> 410 Antitrust |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment | <input type="checkbox"/> 330 Federal Employers' Liability | | <input type="checkbox"/> 830 Patent | <input type="checkbox"/> 430 Banks and Banking |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 151 Medicare Act | <input type="checkbox"/> 340 Marine | | <input type="checkbox"/> 835 Patent - Abbreviated New Drug Application | <input type="checkbox"/> 450 Commerce |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excludes Veterans) | <input type="checkbox"/> 345 Marine Product Liability | | <input type="checkbox"/> 840 Trademark | <input type="checkbox"/> 460 Deportation |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits | <input type="checkbox"/> 350 Motor Vehicle | LABOR | <input type="checkbox"/> 880 Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016 | <input type="checkbox"/> 470 Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 160 Stockholders' Suits | <input type="checkbox"/> 355 Motor Vehicle Product Liability | <input type="checkbox"/> 710 Fair Labor Standards Act | SOCIAL SECURITY | <input type="checkbox"/> 480 Consumer Credit (15 USC 1681 or 1692) |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 190 Other Contract | <input type="checkbox"/> 360 Other Personal Injury | <input type="checkbox"/> 720 Labor/Management Relations | <input type="checkbox"/> 861 HIA (1395ff) | <input type="checkbox"/> 485 Telephone Consumer Protection Act |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 195 Contract Product Liability | <input type="checkbox"/> 362 Personal Injury - Medical Malpractice | <input type="checkbox"/> 740 Railway Labor Act | <input type="checkbox"/> 862 Black Lung (923) | <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> 490 Cable/Sat TV |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 196 Franchise | | <input type="checkbox"/> 751 Family and Medical Leave Act | <input type="checkbox"/> 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) | <input type="checkbox"/> 850 Securities/Commodities/Exchange |
| | | <input type="checkbox"/> 790 Other Labor Litigation | <input type="checkbox"/> 864 SSID Title XVI | <input type="checkbox"/> 890 Other Statutory Actions |
| REAL PROPERTY | CIVIL RIGHTS | <input type="checkbox"/> 791 Employee Retirement Income Security Act | <input type="checkbox"/> 865 RSI (405(g)) | <input type="checkbox"/> 891 Agricultural Acts |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 210 Land Condemnation | <input type="checkbox"/> 440 Other Civil Rights | IMMIGRATION | FEDERAL TAX SUITS | <input type="checkbox"/> 893 Environmental Matters |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 220 Foreclosure | <input type="checkbox"/> 441 Voting | <input type="checkbox"/> 462 Naturalization Application | <input type="checkbox"/> 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant) | <input type="checkbox"/> 895 Freedom of Information Act |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment | <input type="checkbox"/> 442 Employment | <input type="checkbox"/> 465 Other Immigration Actions | <input type="checkbox"/> 871 IRS—Third Party 26 USC 7609 | <input type="checkbox"/> 896 Arbitration |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 240 Torts to Land | <input type="checkbox"/> 443 Housing/Accommodations | | | <input type="checkbox"/> 899 Administrative Procedure Act/Review or Appeal of Agency Decision |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 245 Tort Product Liability | <input type="checkbox"/> 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment | | | <input type="checkbox"/> 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes |
| <input type="checkbox"/> 290 All Other Real Property | <input type="checkbox"/> 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - Other | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 448 Education | | | |
| | PRISONER PETITIONS | | | |
| | Habeas Corpus: | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 463 Alien Detainee | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 510 Motions to Vacate Sentence | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 530 General | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 535 Death Penalty | | | |
| | Other: | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 540 Mandamus & Other | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 550 Civil Rights | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 555 Prison Condition | | | |
| | <input type="checkbox"/> 560 Civil Detainee - Conditions of Confinement | | | |

V. ORIGIN (Place an "X" in One Box Only)

- 1 Original Proceeding
- 2 Removed from State Court
- 3 Remanded from Appellate Court
- 4 Reinstated or Reopened
- 5 Transferred from Another District (specify)
- 6 Multidistrict Litigation - Transfer
- 8 Multidistrict Litigation - Direct File

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

15 USC 78j

Brief description of cause:

Class action securities fraud pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934

VII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT:

CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.

DEMAND \$

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

JURY DEMAND: Yes No

VIII. RELATED CASE(S) IF ANY

(See instructions):

JUDGE _____

DOCKET NUMBER _____

DATE

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

10/09/2023

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT #

AMOUNT

APPLYING FOR

JUDGE

MAILED JUDGE

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

- I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.** Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving both name and title.
- (b) County of Residence.** For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)
- (c) Attorneys.** Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting in this section "(see attachment)".
- II. Jurisdiction.** The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X" in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
 United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here. United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
 Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
 Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; **NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.**)
- III. Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.** This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this section for each principal party.
- IV. Nature of Suit.** Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code that is most applicable. Click here for: [Nature of Suit Code Descriptions](#).
- V. Origin.** Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
 Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
 Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
 Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing date.
 Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
 Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict litigation transfers.
 Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.
 Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to changes in statute.
- VI. Cause of Action.** Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. **Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity.** Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service.
- VII. Requested in Complaint.** Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
 Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
 Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.
- VIII. Related Cases.** This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.